
 

Public hearing staff report, Ord 978  Page 1 of 2  

December 15, 2014 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: December 15, 2014 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Proposed Code Amendments regarding the 

Standards for Electronic Message Signs 
  
 

ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on a city-initiated legislative text 

amendment to Section 17.20.140.10.e regarding the regulation of electronic message signs. 

Following the public hearing, the City Council is requested to consider enactment of Ordinance 

978. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

At their October 20 meeting the City Council voted to direct the Planning Commission to hold a 

public hearing on a proposal to amend the provision of the sign regulations regarding the color 

of lights in electronic message signs.  The Planning Commission held their hearing on November 

24 and following the hearing recommended that the City Council enact the changes included in 

Ordinance 978 

The proposed ordinance would allow any color lights, provided the letters and numbers in an 

electronic message sign are of a uniform color.  

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission has recommended that the City Council enact the amendments as 

presented.  Their Order is attached.  Staff recommends the City Council enact Ordinance 978 as 

presented. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 978 

Move to approve Ordinance No 978 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present 

and their vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is 



 

Public hearing staff report, Ord 978  Page 2 of 2  

December 15, 2014 

unanimous, Ordinance No. 978 is enacted and will be presented to the 

Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 978 will be brought before the 

Council for a second consideration at the January 5, 2015 meeting. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 978 with the following changes … and direct staff to 

incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 

Council for a second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present 

and their vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first 

consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 978 will be brought before the 

Council for a second consideration at its January 5, 2015 meeting. 

3. Retain the Code unchanged  

No motion is necessary. 

 





 

Ordinance No. 978 Amending Standards for Electronic Message Signs Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 978 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

(SMC) TITLE 17, REGARDING THE STANDARDS FOR 

ELECTRONIC MESSAGE SIGNS 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and 

implement a comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning 

goals established by the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 

Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) as 

the Land Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC Title 17, Chapter 20, Section 17.20.140.10.e contains standards applicable to 

electronic message signs; 

WHEREAS, SMC Section 17.20.140.10.e. requires that only amber or white lights be used on 

electronic message signs; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land 

Use and Development Code in regard to the standards for electronic message signs, and 

following a public hearing, has recommended that the Stayton City Council enact the proposed 

amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the 

amendments proposed by the Planning Commission are appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 20 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 

20, Section 17.20.140.10.e is hereby amended as follows: 

e. The following standards shall apply. 

1) With the exception of a message sign that displays only the time or temperature, the message or 
display may be changed no more than once every minute. 

2) The message or display must change as rapidly as technologically practicable, with no phasing, rolling, 
scrolling, flashing or blending. 

3) The message or display may consist only of alphabetic or numeric text of a uniform color on a plain 
background of uniform color and may not include any graphic, pictorial or photographic images.  

4) The display may comprise no more than 50% of the surface area of a message sign. 

5) No more than one changeable sign with 2 sides is allowed per lot. 

6) Only white or amber lights may be used. 

7) The luminance of the sign shall be limited to no more than 280 candelas per square meter.  The 
applicant shall submit information from the sign manufacturer indicating the luminance will be met 
as measured with a luminance meter aperture of 1 degree or less, 50 feet directly in front of the sign 
with the sign in a fully illuminated mode of white light. 

8) The sign shall default to the off position in the case of any failure of mechanisms that control 
luminance or other display features.  



 

Ordinance No. 978 Amending Standards for Electronic Message Signs Page 2 of 2 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 

Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 3.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of 

Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 15th day of December, 2014.  

 CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2014 BY: _______________________________ 

 A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2014 ATTEST: _______________________________ 

 Keith D. Campbell, 

 City Administrator 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 _______________________________ 

 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 
 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:      Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:    Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:     December 15, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:    Ordinance No. 977, Amending Stayton Municipal Code  

Titles 8 and 9 
   
         
ISSUE 
 
Whether  or  not  to  adopt  an  ordinance  to  amend  the  Stayton Municipal Code  (SMC)  Title  8 
relating to Health and Safety and Title 9 relating to Public Peace and Welfare. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Historically, the Stayton Police Department filed misdemeanor cases at the East Marion Justice 
Court (EMJC) here  in Stayton for prosecution.   When the EMJC was closed the Marion County 
District Attorney  (MCDA) opted  to no  longer accept misdemeanor  cases  through  the Marion 
County Justice Court system.   Due to case  load at the Marion County Circuit Court, MCDA has 
also  opted  to  no  longer  prosecute  certain  criminal  activities  unless  there  are  extenuating 
circumstances.    These  include  Criminal  Mischief  III,  Disorderly  Conduct  II,  Harassment  and 
Trespass  II.    There  are  several  additional  crimes we  felt  the  Stayton Municipal  Court  could 
handle  in  our  community  with  positive  results.  These  include:  Driving  While  Suspended‐
Misdemeanor,  Furnishing  Alcohol  to  a  Minor,  Offensive  Littering,  and  Throwing  Burning 
Material from a Vehicle.   As a City we feel there needs to be accountability for these types of 
unlawful  activities  in  order  to  keep  our  citizens  safe.   We  feel  this  can  be  done  affectively 
through the Stayton Municipal Court. 
 
Even though the Stayton Municipal Court is allowed to rule on criminal cases we felt at this time 
it would not be financially feasible for the City to do this. We have therefore opted to reduce 
the  crimes  listed  from misdemeanor  charges  to  violations.    A misdemeanor  charge  has  the 
possibility of “jail time” being part of the consequence.  A violation has no “jail time” attached 
to  it as a consequence.   A violation  instead has a financial, community service, or some other 
similar penalty.  
 
SMC Title 8 and Title 9 generally address issues dealt with by the Stayton Police Department.  In 
making  the  adjustments  to  the  code  to  reduce  the  crimes  listed,  it  was  determined  other 

Ordinance No. 977, Amending Stayton Municipal Code Title 8 & 9  Page 1 of 2  
December 15, 2014 



sections  of  SMC  Title  8  and  9  needed  to  be  updated  as well.  These  changes were made  to 
update  the  SMC  to  newer  language  and  formats,  case  law  updates  and  clarifications  in  the 
code. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The impact to the court will be added court time.  In 2013 the Stayton Police investigated 112 
cases that would have qualified to be tried in the Stayton Municipal Court under these changes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the changes to SMC Title 8 and Title 9. 
 
OPTION(S) 
 
1.  Move  to  enact  Ordinance  No.  977  relating  to  Stayton  Municipal  Code  Title  8  and  9  as 

presented. 
 
2.  Move to enact Ordinance No. 977 relating to Stayton Municipal Code Title 5.12 as amended. 
 
3.  Modify Ordinance 977 to be brought back for consideration 
 
4.  Reject the proposed Ordinance 977. 
 

 
Ordinance No. 977, Amending Stayton Municipal Code Title 8 & 9  Page 2 of 2  
December 15, 2014 





8 Health and Safety 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 1 

  
  
  
  
  
  

 TITLE 8.  
  

 HEALTH AND SAFETY  
  
  
CHAPTERS 
  

8.04  Nuisances  
8.08  Public Alarm Systems  
8.12  Use of Public Parks, Public Property, and Waterways 
8.16  Control of Insect PestsREPEALED  
8.20  Chronic Nuisance Property  

 
 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 21 

CHAPTER 8.04  

NUISANCES  

SECTIONS  

  
8.04.010 Definitions  
8.04.020 Public Health Nuisances  
8.04.030 Attractive Nuisances  
8.04.040 Snow and Ice  
8.04.050 Scattering Rubbish  
8.04.055 RESERVEDProhibiting Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages on Public 

Property  
8.04.060 Trees and Vegetation Obstructing View  
8.04.070 Barbed Wire or Electric Fences  
8.04.080 Inadequate Drainage  
8.04.090 Obstruction of Sidewalks and Alleys  
8.04.100 Obstructing Waterways or Public Thoroughfares  
8.04.110 Utility Wires Strung Too Low  
8.04.120 Damaged, Derelict, and Dangerous Structures   
8.04.130 Noxious Vegetation  
8.04.140 Noise and Vibrations  
8.04.150 Posted Notices  
8.04.160 Advertising: Public Property, Prohibition  
8.04.170 Advertising: Private Property, Prohibition  
8.04.180 Advertising: Public Property, Exceptions  
8.04.190 Advertising: Removal  
8.04.200 Junk Accumulation  
8.04.210 Discarded Vehicles  
8.04.220 Unenumerated Nuisances  
8.04.230 Abatement: Notice  
8.04.235 Abatement of Dangerous Structures   
8.04.240 Abatement: Protest Hearing  
8.04.250 Abatement: Joint Responsibility  
8.04.260 Abatement by City: Procedure  
8.04.270 Abatement by City: Assessment of Costs  
8.04.280 Summary Abatement  
8.04.290 Abatement as Additional Remedy  
8.04.300 RESERVED  
8.04.310 RESERVED  
8.04.320 RESERVED  
8.04.330 RESERVED  
8.04.340 RESERVED  
8.04.350 RESERVED  
8.04.360 RESERVED  
8.04.370 Occupancy of Residential Property after Notice of Violation   
8.04.380 Interference with Repair, Demolition, or Abatement Prohibited  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 2 of 21 

8.04.390 Violation: Penalty  

  

  

8.04.010 DEFINITIONS  

For the purposes of this title, the following words and phrases mean:  

ADVERTISING:   Any method, procedure, or substance used to announce, present, or 
display any fact, opinion, or other information  by means of pictures, words, or designs, or 
otherwise, whether written, printed, painted, or in any other way expressed.   

AIR POLLUTION: Repealed.   

BUILDING OFFICIAL: The individual(s) designated by the City Administrator to 
administer and enforce the building codes, and inspect buildings.   

CESSPOOL: Septic tanks or other subsurface sewage disposal facilities that are in an 
unsanitary condition or which cause an offensive odor.   

CITY ADMINISTRATOR: That official of the City hired or appointed by the 
Mayor/Council to serve at the pleasure of the Council as chief administrative officer of the 
Cityunder Chapter 2.08 of this Code or the aAdministrator’s designee.  

DEBRIS: Accumulations of rubbish, manure, and other refuse that are not removed within a 
reasonable time and that have the potential to affect the health of residents of the City or the 
cleanliness or visual attractiveness of the area.   

DECAYED FOOD: Spoiled or unwholesome food not fit for human consumption.  

DISCARDED VEHICLE:   Any vehicle which is in one or more of the following 
conditions:  

a. Inoperative  

b. Wrecked  

c. Dismantled  

d. Partially dismantled  

e. Abandoned  

f. Junked  

g. Not displaying a current registration plate from a state Department or Division of Motor 
Vehicles  

“Discarded vehicles” also includes major parts of vehicles, including but not limited to 
bodies, engines, body parts, transmissions, or rear ends.   

ENFORCEMENT OFFICER:  The individual designated by the City Administrator to 
enforce the provisions of this Chapter.   

JUNK:  Motor vehicle parts, machinery, machinery parts, appliances or parts thereof, iron or 
other metal, glass, paper, lumber, wood, or other waste or discarded material.   



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 3 of 21 

LOUD, DISTURBING NOISES:  A noisesound that creates a plainly audible noisesound 
within any dwelling unit which does not contain the source of the sound.  

NOXIOUS VEGETATION:  
a. Weeds more than 10 inches high;   

b. Grass more than 10 inches high and not within the exception stated in subsection 1 of this 
Chapter;   

c. Poison oak;  

d. Poison ivy;  

e. Blackberry bushes that extend into a public thoroughfare or across a property line;  

f. Vegetation that is:  

i. A safety hazard because of the possibility of falling branches;   

ii. A fire hazard because it is near other combustibles;  

iii. A traffic hazard because it impairs the view of a public thoroughfare, otherwise 
makes use of the thoroughfare hazardous, or does not meet the sight distance 
triangle requirements contained in SMC Section 17.26.020.4.c) and d); or  

g. Dandelions, hawkweed, Queen Ann’s lace, tansy ragwort, or other weeds that have gone 
to seed.  

h. Noxious vegetation does not include vegetation that constitutes an agricultural crop 
unless that vegetation is a health hazard, a fire hazard, or a traffic hazard.   

ODOR: Premises that are in such a state or condition as to cause an offensive odor, or that 
are in an unsanitary condition.  

PERSON IN CHARGE OF PROPERTY: An owner, agent, occupant, lessee, contract 
purchaser, or other person having possession or control of property or the supervision of any 
construction project.   

PERSON RESPONSIBLE: The persons responsible for abating a nuisance, including:  

a. The owner;  

b. The person in charge of property; or  

c. The person who caused a nuisance to come into or continue in existence.  

PLAINLY AUDIBLE SOUND: Any sound that is clearly distinguishable from other 
sounds, such as but not limited to, amplified speech sufficiently loud to be understood by a 
person with normal hearing, or when a person with normal hearing can readily discern 
whether an amplified or reproduced human voice is raised or normal, or any musical sound 
sufficiently loud to permit the melody or rhythm to be recognized by a person with normal 
hearing, or any other sound  sufficiently loud to materially affect the ability of a person with 
normal hearing to understand a verbal communication made in a normal conversational tone 
from a distance of 10 feet or less.   

PRIVIES: An open vault or receptacle for human waste constructed and maintained within 
the City, except those constructed or maintained in connection with construction projects or 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 4 of 21 

outdoor, community gatherings of large groups of people, in accordance with the State 
Health Division regulations.   

PUBLIC PLACE: A building, way, place, or accommodation, whether publicly or privately 
owned, open and available to the general public.   

PUBLIC THOROUGHFARE: A street, alley, bicycle path, pedestrian way, or trail that is 
open to the public.   

REFUSE/RUBBISH: Any material discarded or rejected as useless or worthless.  

SLAUGHTERHOUSES: An establishment where animals are killed and processed for 
meat, where animal byproducts are rendered, or where animal hides are tanned.  For purposes 
of this Chapter, an establishment where livestock are kept in a confined manner shall also be 
considered a slaughterhouse.   

SOUND PRODUCTION OR REPRODUCTION DEVICE: Any radio, stereo, 
loudspeaker, amplifier, television, tape player, or other similar machine or mechanical or 
electrical device intended for the production, reproduction, or amplification of sound.  

STAGNANT WATER: Water that affords a breeding place for mosquitoes and other insect 
pests.  

SURFACE DRAINAGE:  Drainage of liquid wastes from private premises.  

VEHICLE:   Any device in, upon, or by which any person or property may be transported or 
drawn upon a public highway, except devices moved by human power or used exclusively 
upon stationary rails or tracks.  

WATER POLLUTION:  Repealed.  (Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

  

8.04.020 PUBLIC HEALTH NUISANCES  

No person shall cause or permit on property owned or controlled by that person any nuisance 
affecting the public health.  Cesspools, debris, decayed food, odor, privies, slaughterhouses 
and other similar establishments, stagnant water, and surface drainage are nuisances affecting 
the public health and shall be abated as provided in Sections 8.04.240 through 8.04.290.  
(Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.030 ATTRACTIVE NUISANCES  

1. No person shall create an attractive nuisance or hazard by:  

a. Maintaining or leaving in a place accessible to children a container with a compartment 
of more than one and one-half cubic feet capacity and a door or lid which locks or 
fastens automatically when closed and which cannot be easily opened from the inside, 
including specifically any used icebox, refrigerator or freezer of any size or shape; or  

b. Being the owner or otherwise having possession of property upon which there is a 
well, cistern, cesspool, excavation, or other hole of a depth of four feet or more and a 
top width of twelve inches or more and failing or refusing  to cover or fence it with a 
suitable protective construction.  

2. No owner or person in charge of property shall permit on the property:  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 5 of 21 

a. Unguarded machinery, equipment, or other devices that is attractive, dangerous, and 
accessible to the public;  

b. Lumber, logs, or piling placed or stored in a manner so as to be attractive, dangerous, 
or accessible to the public;   

c. An open pit, quarry, cistern, or other excavation without safeguards or barriers to 
prevent such places from being accessed by the public.   

This subsection shall not apply to authorized construction projects with reasonable 
safeguards to prevent injury or death to the public.   (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 
899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.040 SNOW AND ICE  

No owner or person in charge of property, improved or unimproved, abutting on a public 
sidewalk shall permit:  

1. Snow to remain on the sidewalk for a period longer than the first 12 hours after daybreak 
after the snow has fallen;  

2. Ice to remain on the sidewalk for more than 12 hours after daybreak after the ice has 
formed unless the ice is covered with sand, ashes, or other suitable material to assure safe 
travel.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

8.04.050 SCATTERING RUBBISH  

No person shall deposit upon public or private property any kind of rubbish, trash, debris, 
refuse, or any substance that would mar the appearance, create a stench or fire hazard, detract 
from the cleanliness or safety of the property, or would be likely to injure a person, animal, 
or vehicle traveling upon a public way.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

8.04.055 PROHIBITING CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON PUBLIC 
PROPERTY  

No person shall drink or consume alcoholic beverages in or upon any public street or sidewalk, 
alley, public grounds, parks, City-owned facilities and properties, except 
when a permit for that purpose has been issued pursuant to this section. 
(Ord. 921, April 05, 2010; Ord. 760, '1, April 1996)  

1. Upon application to the City, the City Administrator, or designee may grant a revocable 
facility use permit to responsible persons or organizations for an event or 
activity at which alcoholic beverages may be served and consumed in 
City-owned facilities or on city property. (Ord. 921, April 05, 2010)    

 

2. The Council shall adopt rules governing facility use permits by Resolution.   (Ord. 921, April 
05, 2010; Ord. 899, October 01, 2007; Ord. 871, November 22, 2004)  

8.04.060 TREES AND VEGETATION OBSTRUCTING VIEW  

1. No owner or person in charge of property that abuts on a street or public sidewalk shall 
permit trees or vegetation on the property to interfere with street or sidewalk traffic.    

2. The owner or person in charge of property shall keep all trees and vegetation on the 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 6 of 21 

property, including the adjoining parking strip, trimmed to a height of not less than 8 feet 
above the sidewalk and not less than 10 feet above the roadway.  (Ord. 798, May 17, 
1999)  

3. No owner or person in charge of property shall allow any hedge or other obstructing 
vegetation within the vision clearance area (also known as the sight distance triangle) 
described in this Chaptersection per the requirements contained in SMC Section 
17.26.020.4.c) and d).   

a. Repealed.   

b. The vision clearance area shall not contain temporary or permanent obstructions to 
vision exceeding 24 inches in height above the curb level or street shoulder where 
there is no curb, except a supporting pillar or post not greater than 12 inches in 
diameter or 12 inches on the diagonal of a rectangular pillar or post; and, further, 
excepting utility poles and those posts, poles, tree trunks, street signs, street lights, 
and traffic control signs.   

c. Vision clearance shall not be required at a height 7 feet or more above the curb level or 
7 feet 6 inches above the shoulder of a street that does not have curbs.  

d. The vision clearance provisions of this section shall not be construed as waiving or 
altering any yard, landscaping or setback requirements that may be required in Title 
17 or any other section of this codeCode.  

  

 

e. Repealed.  (Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.070 BARBED WIRE OR ELECTRIC FENCES  

1. No owner or person in charge of property shall construct or maintain a barbed wire fence, 
or permit barbed wire to remain as a part of a fence, within three feet of a sidewalk or 
public way, except such wire may be placed above the top of other fencing not less than 6 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 7 of 21 

feet high.   

2. No owner or person in charge of property shall construct, maintain, or operate an electric 
fence except to contain livestock permitted under Section 6.04.185.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.080 INADEQUATE DRAINAGE  

1. No owner or person in charge of property shall cause or permit any water from any ditch, 
canal, flume, reservoir pipeline, or conduit above or below the ground to leak or flow 
over or under any premises, public street, sidewalk, or other public property where such 
leak or flow shall endanger the public health, safety, welfare, or convenience.   

2. No owner or person in charge of a building or structure shall cause or permit rainwater, 
ice, or snow to fall from the building or structure onto a public sidewalk or to flow across 
the sidewalk.  The owner or person in charge of any structure shall install and maintain in 
proper repair adequate drainpipes or a drainage system, so that any overflow water 
accumulating on the roof or about the building is not carried across or upon the sidewalk.  
(Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.090 OBSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS AND ALLEYS  

1. Except as specifically provided in this section, no person shall place or maintain any item 
obstructing a sidewalk or alley that extends more than 36 inches into the public right-of-
way.  

2. No person may obstruct any portion of a sidewalk, street, or alley with any building 
material in connection with the alteration or construction of buildings without first 
obtaining a permit from the City Administrator or designee.  

3. If obstruction is permitted under subsection 2 of this section, not more than one-third of 
the street or alley shall be occupied or obstructed with material, and only in front of the 
property where the building is being altered or constructed.   

4. Any person who maintains an obstruction under subsection 2 of this section shall, upon 
request of the City Administrator or designee, give written proof of carrying liability 
insurance to cover any hazard.   

5. If a permit is granted to allow obstruction, the person so obstructing shall maintain a 
substantial temporary sidewalk around the construction.  A guard railing and amber light 
as a danger signal shall be kept at each end of the obstruction during the hours between 
sunset to sunrise.  

6. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the display of goods and materials 
upon private property, nor shall it apply to persons receiving or discharging goods or 
merchandise across a sidewalk or alley in accordance with all applicable laws. and 
ordinances.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.100 OBSTRUCTING WATERWAYS OR PUBLIC THOROUGHFARES  

No person shall interfere with, obstruct, create a congested condition or render dangerous for 
passage any stream, canal, waterway, or any public park, square, sidewalk, public way, alley, 
street, or highway.  (Ord. 727, February 1993. '1; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 8 of 21 

8.04.110 UTILITY WIRES STRUNG TOO LOW  

No wires used for the transmission of electricity or for any communication purposes shall be 
strung less than 15 feet above the surface of the ground.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 
899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.120 DAMAGED, DERELICT AND DANGEROUS STRUCTURES   

1. No property shall contain any dangerous or derelict structure as described in this Chapter. 
All such buildings or structures shall be repaired or demolished.   

2. Derelict Structures   

a. A derelict structure is any unoccupied nonresidential building, structure, or portion 
thereof that meets any of the following criteria or any residential building which is at 
least 50% unoccupied and meets any of the following criteria:  

 i. Has been ordered vacated by the Enforcement Officer pursuant to SMC Section 
8.04.235.2; or,  

 ii. Has been issued a notice of infraction by the Enforcement Officer pursuant to SMC 
Section 8.04.230; or,  

 iii. Is unsecured; or,  

 iv. Is boarded unless the boarding is required by the Enforcement Officer; or,  

 v. Has, while vacant, had a nuisance declared by the City on the property upon which it 
is located.  

b. Any property which has been declared by the Building Official to include a derelict 
structure shall be considered in violation of this Chapter until:  

 i. The structure has been lawfully occupied;  

 ii. The structure has been demolished and the lot cleared and graded after approval is 
issued by the City, with final inspection and approval by the Building Official, or,  

 iii. The owner has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Building Official that the 
property is free of all conditions causing its status as a derelict structure.  (Ord. 
899, October 1, 2007)  

3. Dangerous Structures   

a. Any structure which through damage, neglect or lack of maintenance, has any or all of 
the following conditions or defects to the extent that life, health, property or safety of 
the public or the structure’s occupants are endangered, shall be deemed to be a 
dangerous structure, declared a nuisance, and such condition or defects shall be 
abated pursuant to SMC Section 8.04.230.  

 i. High loads. Whenever the stress in any materials, member, or portion of a structure, 
due to all dead and live loads, is more than 1-1/2 times the working stress or 
stresses allowed by the current Oregon building codes for new buildings of 
similar structure, purpose, or location.  

 ii. Weakened or unstable structural members or appendages.  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 9 of 21 

a. Whenever any portion of a structure has been damaged by fire, earthquake, 
wind, flood, or by any other cause, to such an extent that the structural 
strength or stability is materially less than it was before such catastrophe and 
is less than the minimum requirements of the current Oregon building codes 
for new buildings of similar structure, purpose, or location; or  

b. Whenever appendages including parapet walls, cornices, spires, towers, tanks, 
statuaries, or other appendages or structural members which are supported by, 
attached to, or part of a building, and which are in a deteriorated condition or 
otherwise unable to sustain the design loads which are specified in the current 
Oregon building codes.  

 iii. Buckled or leaning walls, structural members. Whenever the exterior walls or other 
vertical structural members list, lean, or buckle to such an extent that a plumb line 
passing through the center of gravity does not fall inside the middle one-third of 
the base.  

 iv. Vulnerability to earthquakes, high winds 

a. Whenever any portion of a structure is wrecked, warped, buckled, or has settled 
to such an extent that walls or other structural portions have materially less 
resistance to winds or earthquakes than is required in the case of similar new 
construction; or  

b. Whenever any portion of a building, or any member, appurtenance, or 
ornamentation of the exterior thereof is not of sufficient strength or stability, 
or is not so anchored, attached or fastened in place so as to be capable of 
resisting a wind pressure of one half of that specified in the current Oregon 
building codes for new buildings of similar structure, purpose, or location 
without exceeding the working stresses permitted in the current Oregon 
building codes for such buildings.  

 v. Insufficient strength or fire resistance.  Whenever any structure which, whether or not 
erected in accordance with all applicable laws and ordinances:  

a. Has in any non-supporting part, member, or portion, less than 50% of the 
strength or the fire-resisting qualities or characteristics required by law for a 
newly constructed building of like area, height, and occupancy in the same 
location; or  

b. Has in any supporting part, member, or portion less than 66% of the strength or 
the fire-resisting qualities or characteristics required by law in the case of a 
newly constructed building of like area, height, and occupancy in the same 
location.  

 vi. Risk of failure or collapse 

a. Whenever any portion or member or appurtenance thereof is likely to fail, or to 
become disabled or dislodged, or to collapse and thereby injure persons or 
damage property; or  

b. Whenever the structure, or any portion thereof, is likely to partially or 
completely collapse as a result of any cause, including but not limited to:  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 10 of 21 

1. Dilapidation, deterioration, or decay;  

2. Faulty construction;  

3. The removal, movement, or instability of any portion of the ground 
necessary for the purpose of supporting such structure; or  

4. The deterioration, decay, or inadequacy of its foundation.  

 vii. Excessive damage or deterioration. Whenever the structure exclusive of the 
foundation:  

a. Shows 33% or more damage or deterioration of its supporting member or 
members;  

b. 50% damage or deterioration of its non-supporting members; or  

c. 50% damage or deterioration of its enclosing or outside wall coverings.  

 viii. Demolition remnants on site. Whenever any portion of a structure, including 
unfilled excavations, remains on a site for more than 30 days after the demolition 
or destruction of the structure;  

 ix. Fire hazard.  Whenever any structure is a fire hazard as a result of any cause, 
including but not limited to dilapidated condition, deterioration, or damage; 
inadequate exits; lack of sufficient fire-resistive construction; or faulty electric 
wiring, gas connections, or heating apparatus.  

 x. Other hazards to health, safety, or public welfare 

a. Whenever, for any reason, the structure, or any portion thereof, is manifestly 
unsafe for the purpose for which it is lawfully constructed or currently is 
being used; or  

b. Whenever a structure is structurally unsafe or is otherwise hazardous to human 
life, including but not limited to whenever a structure constitutes a hazard to 
health, safety, or public welfare by reason of inadequate maintenance, 
dilapidation, unsanitary conditions, obsolescence, fire hazard, disaster, 
damage, or abandonment.  

 xi. Public nuisance.  Whenever the structure has been so damaged by fire, wind, 
earthquake or flood or any other cause, or has become so dilapidated or 
deteriorated as to become an attractive nuisance or a harbor for vagrants or 
criminals.  

 xii. Chronic dereliction. Whenever a derelict structure remains unoccupied for a period 
in excess of 6 months or period less than 6 months when the structure or portion 
thereof constitutes an attractive nuisance or hazard to the public.  

 xiii. Violations of codes, laws. Whenever any structure has been constructed, exists, or is 
maintained in violation of any specific requirement or prohibition applicable to 
such structure provided by the building regulations of this City, as specified in the 
current Oregon building codes or any law or ordinance of this State or City 
relating to the condition, location, or structure or buildings.  (Ord. 899, October 1, 
2007)  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 11 of 21 

4. Abatement of Dangerous Structures   

All structures or portions thereof which are determined after inspection by the Building 
Official to be dangerous as defined in this Chapter are hereby declared to be public 
nuisances and shall be abated by repair, rehabilitation, demolition, or removal in 
accordance with the procedures specified herein. If the Building Official determines that 
a structure is dangerous, as defined by this Chapter, the Enforcement Officer shall 
commence proceedings to cause the repair, vacation or demolition of the structure.  (Ord. 
899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.130 NOXIOUS VEGETATION  

1. 1. The term "noxious vegetation" does not include vegetation that constitutes an 
agricultural crop nor vegetation on a parcel of property or any portion of a parcel 
of property that is greater than 100 feet from a public right-of-way, alley, property 
line, or dwelling unit, unless that vegetation is a health hazard, a fire hazard, or a 
traffic hazard and the requirements contained in Section 17.26.020.4.c) and d).   

2. 2. The term "noxious vegetation" does include:   

3. a. weeds more than 10 inches high;   

4. b. grass more than 10 inches high and not within the exception stated in 
subsection 1 of this section;   

5. c. poison oak;  

6. d. poison ivy;  

7. e. blackberry bushes that extend into a public thoroughfare or across a property 
line;  

8. f. vegetation that is:  

9.  i. a safety hazard because of the possibility of falling branches;   

10.  ii. a fire hazard because it is near other combustibles;  

11.  iii. a traffic hazard because it impairs the view of a public thoroughfare, 
otherwise makes use of the thoroughfare hazardous, or does not meet the sight 
distance triangle requirements contained in Section 17.26.020.4.c) and d).   

1. No owner or person in charge of property shall allow noxious vegetation to be on 
the property or in the public right-of-way of a public thoroughfare abutting on the 
property.  An owner or person in charge of property shall cut down or destroy 
grass, shrubbery, brush, bushes, weeds, or other noxious vegetation as often as 
needed to prevent them from becoming noxious vegetationunsightly, from 
becoming a fire hazard, or, in the case of weeds or other noxious vegetation, from 
maturing or going to seed.   

2. Between March 1st and April 15th of each year, the City Administrator may 
publish three times, in a newspaper of general circulation in the City, a copy of 
subsection 13 as a notice to all owners and persons in charge of property of the 
duty to keep their property free from noxious vegetation.  The notice shall state 
that the City is willing to abate the nuisance on a particular parcel of property at 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 12 of 21 

the request of the owner or person in charge of the property for a fee sufficient to 
cover the City’s abatement costs.  The notice shall also state that, in the absence 
of request, the City intends to abate all nuisances 10 or more days after the final 
publication of the notice and to charge the cost of doing so to the owner or the 
person responsible for the property, or on the property itself.   

3. In lieu of providing notice as provided in subsection 24 of this section, between 
March 1st and April 15th of each year, the City Administrator may obtain a list of 
property owners within the City and may then mail a notice to each listed property 
owner.  The notice shall include a copy of subsection 13 advising property owners 
of their duty to keep their property free from noxious vegetation.  The notice shall 
also state that the City is willing to abate the nuisance on a particular parcel of 
property for a fee sufficient to cover the City’s abatement costs.  The notice shall 
also state that, in the absence of such request, the City intends to abate all such 
nuisances at any time and the City will charge the cost of abating the nuisance on 
a particular parcel of property to the owner or the person responsible for the 
property, or on the property itself.   

4. During any time of each year, the City Administrator may provide notice for 
abatement of noxious vegetation as provided in SMC Section 8.04.240.   

5. If the notices provided for in subsections 42 or 53 are used, they shall be in lieu of 
the notice required by Section 8.04.240.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, 
October 1, 2007)  

8.04.140 NOISE AND VIBRATIONS  

1. No person shall make, assist in making, continue, or cause to be made any loud, 
disturbing, or unnecessary noise which either annoys, disturbs, injures, or endangers the 
comfort, repose, health, safety, or peace of others between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
7:00 a.m. except as otherwise provided.  (Ord. 773, 4 August, 1997)   

2. Loud, disturbing and unnecessary noises include, but are not limited to:  

a. The keeping of any animal which, by causing frequent or continued noise, 
disturbs the comfort and repose of any person in the vicinity.   

b. b. The attaching of a bell to an animal or allowing a bell to remain on an animal.  

b. c. The use of a vehicle or engine, either stationary or moving, so out of repair, 
loaded, or operated as to create any loud or unnecessary grating, grinding, rattling, 
or other noise.  

c. d. The sounding of a horn or signaling device on a vehicle on a street, public 
place, or private place, except as a necessary warning of danger.  

d. e. Repealed.  (Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

e. f. The use of a mechanical device operated by compressed air, steam, or 
otherwise, unless the noise created thereby is effectively muffled.  

f. g. The erection, including excavation, demolition, alteration, or repair of a 
building in residential districts other than between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m., except in case of urgent necessity in the interest of the public welfare and 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 13 of 21 

safety, and then only with permit granted by the City Administrator for a period 
not to exceed 10 days.  The permit may be renewed for periods of five days while 
the emergency continues to exist.  If the City Administrator determines that the 
public health, safety, and welfare will not be impaired by the erection, demolition, 
alteration, or repair of a building between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., 
and if the City Administrator shall further determine that loss or inconvenience 
would result to any person unless the work is permitted within those hours, the 
City Administrator may grant permission for such work to be done within 
specified hours between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., upon application therefore being 
made at the time the permit for the work is awarded or during the progress of the 
work.  The owner of property may do work on property actually occupied by the 
owner between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m. without obtaining a permit.   

g. h. The use of a gong or siren upon a vehicle other than an emergency services 
vehicle except when used as part of a community function such as a parade or 
other special promotion for which a permit has been issued under S.M.C. Chapter 
10.36.   

h. i. The creation of loud or disturbing noises on a street adjacent to a school, 
institution of learning, church, or court of justice, while the same are in use, or on 
a street adjacent to a hospital, nursing home, or other institution for the care of the 
sick or infirm, which interferes with the safe operation of such institution or 
disturbs or unduly annoys occupants.  

i. j. The discharge in the open air of the exhaust of a steam engine, internal 
combustion engine, motorboat, or motor vehicle, except through muffler or other 
device which will effectively prevent loud or explosive noises.  

j. k. The use or operation of an automatic or electric piano, phonograph, radio, 
television, loudspeaker, or any instrument for sound producing, or any sound 
production device so loudly as to disturb persons in the vicinity thereof, or in such 
a manner as renders the use thereof a nuisance.  However, upon application to the 
Chief of Police, permits may be granted to responsible persons or organizations 
for the broadcast or amplification of programs of music, news, speeches, or 
general entertainment as a part of a national, state, or municipal event, public 
festivals, or outstanding events of a noncommercial nature.   

k. l. The making of a noise by crying, calling, or shouting or by means of a whistle, 
rattle, bell, gong, clapper, horn, hammer, drum, musical instrument, or other 
device for the purpose of advertising goods, wares, or merchandise, attracting 
attention, or inviting patronage of a person to a business.  

l. m. The conducting, operating, or maintaining of a commercial or industrial 
business within 100 feet of a private residence, apartment, rooming house, or 
hotel in such manner as to cause loud or disturbing noises to be emitted there 
from between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.   

3. No person shall make, assist in making, continue, or cause to be made any loud, 
disturbing, or unnecessary noise which either annoys, disturbs, injures, or endangers the 
comfort, repose, health, safety, or peace of others at any time in the following manner:  



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 14 of 21 

(Ord. 773, August 4, 1997)  

a. The use or operation of any sound production or reproduction device, car alarm or horn 
on public property or on a public right-of-way so as to cause a plainly audible sound 
fifty feet or more from such device, except as allowed by permits in SMC section 2, 
subsection kj. or in the case of an actual emergency.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; 
Ord. 773, August 4, 1997)   

b. The operation, or to permit the use or operation of any device designed for sound 
production or reproduction, including, but not limited to any radio, television set, 
musical instrument, phonograph, loud speaker, bell, chime, horn, in such a manner as 
to cause a noise disturbance and as defined in SMC Section 8.04.140.2.d and k, 
except as allowed by permits in SMC Section 8.04.140.2.jk, so as to be plainly 
audible within any dwelling unit, church, temple, synagogue, business, day care 
center or school; which is not the source of the sound. The sources of noise within the 
City industrial zones are exempt from this SMC section 8.04.150 (3).(Ord. 773, 4 
August, 1997; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.150 POSTED NOTICES  

No person shall affix a sign, placard, bill, or poster upon personal or real property, private or 
public, without first obtaining permission from the owner thereof or from the proper public 
authority.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

8.04.160 ADVERTISING: PUBLIC PROPERTY, PROHIBITION  

1. Except as otherwise specifically permitted, no person may:  

1. Place, display, scatter, or distribute any advertising matter on or across any public 
street, sidewalk, city street right of way, or other public thoroughfare or erect, 
place, or display any structure or device which is used to display advertising 
matter on or acrosswithin any public street, sidewalk, city street right of way, or 
other public thoroughfare except on the City-provided cables on N First Ave 
between Cedar and Regis Streets in accordance with SMC Section 17.20.140.3.l  
and sidewalk signs in the Downtown Zones as allowed in accordance with SMC 
Title 17.20.140.9-A.  

2. Attach any advertising matter to any tree, pole, or post situated on any public 
property within the City.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.170 ADVERTISING: PRIVATE PROPERTY, PROHIBITION  

No person may display any advertising matter on or across any private property within the 
City without the express consent of the owner or person in charge of such property.  (Ord. 
711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.180 ADVERTISING: PUBLIC PROPERTY, EXCEPTIONS  

1. The City Administrator may permit any person to display or distribute advertising on 
City-owned property for meetings or entertainment.  If the request is denied, the applicant 
may appeal to the City Council.   

2. The City Council may, upon request, permit any person to erect a sign or device adjacent 
to any property to display advertising matter pertaining to the business or activity carried 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 15 of 21 

on at said premises, and which will extend over or across any portion of a public 
thoroughfare.  Any person desiring such permission shall apply to the City Administrator 
who shall forward the request to the City Council.  If the City Council finds that such 
sign or device is not likely to endanger any person or property, it may grant the 
application, dictating the terms and conditions for such erection and use, or it may reject 
the application.   

2. Any sign or device permitted under this Section must conform to standards in the Oregon 
Structural Specialty Code as adopted by Marion County, where such standards are 
applicable.   

3. Nothing in SMC Sections 8.04.170 through 8.04.190 of this Chapter shall prohibit the 
proper display of notices of any election to be held by the federal or state governments or 
any subdivision thereof, or of notices of judicial sales, or any other notices or 
advertisements issued or displayed pursuant to law/code or ordinance.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007) 

Sidewalk signs in the Downtown Zones as allowed in accordance with Title 17.20.140  

8.04.190 ADVERTISING: REMOVAL  

The Police Chief or designate may immediately remove and dispose of any advertising 
matter or sign or other device displayed or erected within the City in violation of any of the 
terms of this Chapter.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.200 JUNK ACCUMULATION  

1. No person shall keep any junk outdoors on any street, lot, or premises, or in a building that 
is not wholly or entirely enclosed, except doors used for ingress and egress.  

2. This section shall not apply to junk kept by a junk dealer licensed under S.M.C. Chapter 
5.36.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.210 DISCARDED VEHICLES  

1. No person shall store or permit the storing of a discarded vehicle on any private property 
for more than seventy-two hours, unless it is completely enclosed within a building or in 
a space entirely enclosed by a solid fence, hedge, or screen, not less than 6 feet in height, 
or unless it is in connection with a business enterprise dealing in junked vehicles lawfully 
conducted within the City.  

2. In addition to or in lieu of the procedures contained in SMC Sections 8.04.240 through 
8.04.290 for abating nuisances, vehicles found in violation of subsection 1 of this section 
may be impounded and disposed of in accordance with the applicable state law for 
vehicles abandoned in public places.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 
2007)  

8.04.220 UNENUMERATED NUISANCES  

1. The acts, conditions, or objects, specifically enumerated and defined in SMC Sections 
8.04.020 through 8.04.210 are declared public nuisances, and such acts, conditions, or 
objects may be abated by any of the procedures set forth in Sections 8.04.240 through 
8.04.290.   



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 16 of 21 

2. In addition to the nuisances specifically enumerated in this Chapter, every other thing, 
substance, or act which is determined by the Council to be injurious or detrimental to the 
public health, safety, or welfare is declared a nuisance and may be abated as provided in 
this Chapter.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.230 ABATEMENT: NOTICE  

1. If satisfied that a nuisance exists, the Enforcement Officer shall notify the 
property owner by registered or certified mail at the address of record in the 
Marion County Assessor’s Office of the cause a notice to be posted on the 
premises or at the site of the nuisancenuisance conditions, directing the person 
responsible to abate the nuisance.   

2. 2. At the time of posting, the Enforcement Officer shall cause a copy of the notice 
to be forwarded by registered or certified mail to the person responsible at the last 
known address, or the notice may be personally served.  

2. The notice to abate shall contain:  

a. A description of the real property, by street address or otherwise, on which 
the nuisance exists.  

b. A direction to abate the nuisance within 10 days from the date of the 
notice.   

c. A description of the nuisance.  

d. A statement that, unless the nuisance is removed, the City may abate the 
nuisance and the cost of the abatement will be charged to the person 
responsible.   

e. A statement that failure to abate a nuisance may warrant imposition of a 
fine.  

f. A statement that the person responsible may protest the order to abate by 
giving written notice to the City Administrator within 10 days from the 
date of the notice.   

3. If the person responsible is not the owner, an additional notice shall be served on 
the owner, whose name and address appear on the County tax records, stating that 
the cost of abatement not paid by the person responsible may be assessed to and 
become a lien on the property.   

5. 5. Upon completion of the posting and mailing, the Enforcement Officer shall 
execute and file certificates stating the date and place of the mailing and posting.   

4. If there is an inaccuracy in the name or address of the person responsible or 
property owner it shall not affect the validity of the notice, the posted notice shall 
be sufficient.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

 

8.04.235 ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS STRUCTURES.   

 All structures or portions thereof which are determined after inspection by the Building 
Official to be dangerous as defined in this Chapter are hereby declared to be public 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 17 of 21 

nuisances and shall be abated by repair, rehabilitation, demolition, or removal in 
accordance with the procedures specified herein. If the Building Official determines that 
a structure is dangerous, as defined by this Chapter, the Enforcement Officer shall 
commence proceedings to cause the repair, vacation or demolition of the structure.  

1 Notice of Status as Derelict or Dangerous Structure 

a. When the Building Official determines that a structure is a derelict or dangerous 
structure, the Enforcement oOfficer shall give notice of the infraction to the owner 
pursuant to this Chapter.  Additional notice to other affected persons, such as tenants 
and holders of a security interest shall be given.  In addition to the notice required by 
SMC Section 8.04.230, the Enforcement Officer shall give the statement of actions 
required to cure or remedy the condition and, if necessary, the order to vacate 
described in SMC Section 8.04.235.2.  

b. Statement of Actions Required 

 i. Notice of the statement of action shall be given in conjunction with the notice of 
infraction pursuant to SMC Section 8.04.230.  

 ii. The statement of the action required to cure or remedy a condition giving rise to 
classification of a structure as derelict or dangerous shall include the following:  

(a) If the Building Official has determined that the building or structure must be 
repaired, the statement shall require that all required permits be secured and 
the work physically commenced within such time from the date of the 
statement and completed within such time as the Enforcement Officer shall 
determine is reasonable under all of the circumstances, but no more than 10 
days, or the building or structure be demolished.  

(b) If the Building Official has determined that the building or structure must be 
vacated, the statement shall order that the building or structure shall be 
vacated within a time certain from the date of the statement as determined by 
the Enforcement Officer to be reasonable, but no more than 7 days.  

(c) If the Building Official has determined that  

(1) the building or structure is vacant,  

(2) the building or structure is structurally sound and does not present a fire 
hazard, and  

(3) the building or structure has presented or is likely to present a danger to 
individuals who may enter the building or structure even though they are 
unauthorized to do so, the statement shall require that the building or 
structure be secured against unauthorized entry by means which may 
include but are not limited to the boarding up of doors and windows.  

(d) If the Building Official has determined that the building or structure must be 
demolished, the statement shall order that the building be vacated within such 
time as the Enforcement Officer shall determine is reasonable from the date of 
the statement; that all required permits be secured from the date of the 
statement, and that the demolition be completed within such time as the 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 18 of 21 

Enforcement Officer shall determine is reasonable.  

(e) Statements advising that if any required repair or demolition work (without 
vacation also being required) is not commenced within the time specified, the 
Enforcement Officer will order the building vacated and posted to prevent 
further occupancy until the work is completed, and may proceed to cause the 
work to be done and charge the costs thereof against the property or its 
owners.  

2 Notice of Unsafe Occupancy 

a. Posting Notice. In conjunction with an order to vacate, a notice shall be posted at or 
upon each exit of the building and shall be in substantially the following form:  

DO NOT ENTER  

UNSAFE TO OCCUPY  

It is a violation of Chapter 8.04 of the Stayton 
Municipal Code to enter or occupy this building or to 

remove or deface this nNotice.  

Enforcement Officer  

City of Stayton  

________________  

b. Compliance 

 i. Upon an order to vacate and the posting of an unsafe building notice, no person shall 
remain in or enter any building which has been so posted, except that entry may 
be made to repair, demolish or remove such building under permit.  

 ii. No person shall remove or deface any such notice after it is posted until the required 
repairs, demolition or removal have been completed and either a final inspection 
has been conducted in the case of residential structure or a certificate of 
occupancy issued pursuant to the provisions of the building code ordinance. (Ord. 
899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.240 ABATEMENT: PROTEST HEARING.  

1. Within the time limit set by the notice under SMC section 8.04.230 or 8.04.235, the person 
responsible shall remove the nuisance or show that no nuisance exists.   

2. A person responsible, protesting that no nuisance exists, shall file with the City 
Administrator a written statement that specifies the basis for so protesting.   

3. The statement shall be referred to the Council as a part of its regular agenda at its next 
succeeding meeting.  At the time set for consideration of the abatement, the person 
protesting may appear and be heard by the Council.  The Council shall determine whether 
or not a nuisance exists, or whether abatement of any nuisance will work a hardship on 
the property owner or person in charge of property out of proportion to the benefit to the 
public.  Council determinations shall be required only in those cases where a written 
statement has been filed as provided herein.   



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 19 of 21 

4. If the Council determines that a nuisance does exist and that abatement will not work an 
unreasonable hardship, the person responsible shall abate the nuisance within 10 days 
after the Council determination, or within such other time limit as may be set by the 
Council.   (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.250 ABATEMENT: JOINT RESPONSIBILITY  

If more than one person is a person responsible, they shall be jointly and severally liable for 
abating the nuisance, or for the costs incurred by the City in abating the nuisance.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.260 ABATEMENT BY CITY: PROCEDURE  

1. If, within the time allowed, the nuisance has not been abated by the person responsible, the 
Council may cause the nuisance to be abated.   

2. The Enforcement Officer has the right at reasonable times to enter into or upon the 
property to investigate or cause the removal of a nuisance in accordance with S.M.C. 
Chapter 1.24.   

3. The person charged with removing any nuisance shall use all reasonable care so as to do a 
minimum of damage to any ornamental grass or bushes or any structure or other item not 
the subject of the abatement.  

4. The City Administrator shall keep an accurate record of the expense incurred by the City 
in physically abating the nuisance and shall include therein a charge of $100 or 10% of 
those expenses, whichever is greater, for administrative overhead.   

5. The cost of any abatement by the City shall be paid from the general fund, and all income 
resulting from the enforcement of SMC Section 8.04.280 and the collection of such costs 
shall be credited to said fund.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.270 ABATEMENT BY CITY: ASSESSMENT OF COSTS  

1. The City Administrator shall deliver, by personal service or by mail, both regular 
and certified mail (return receipt requested), to the person responsible and to the 
owner a notice stating:   

a. The total cost of abatement, including the administrative overhead;  

b. That the cost as indicated will be assessed to and become a lien against the 
property unless paid within thirty days from the date of the notice.  

c. That if the person responsible objects to the cost of the abatement as 
indicated, that person may file a notice of objection with the City 
Administrator not more than 10 days from the date of the notice.  

2. 2. Upon the expiration of 10 days after the date of the notice, the Council, in the 
regular course of business, shall hear and determine any objections to the costs 
assessed.   

2. If the costs of the abatement are not paid within thirty days from the date of the 
notice an assessment of the costs as stated or determined by the Council shall be 
made by resolution and shall then be entered in the docket of City liens against 
the property from which the nuisance was removed or abated.   



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 20 of 21 

3. The lien shall be enforced in the same manner as liens for street improvements are 
enforced and shall bear interest at the rate of 9% per year.  The interest shall be 
computed from the date of entry of the lien in the lien docket.   

4. If there is an inaccuracy in the name of the owner or person responsible, if such 
persons do not receive the notice of the proposed assessment, the assessment shall 
remain a valid lien against the property.   

6. If neither the person responsible nor the owner has received notice of the proposed 
assessment, then the City shall publish the notice of the proposed 
assessment once in a newspaper of general circulation.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.280 SUMMARY ABATEMENT  

The procedure provided by SMC Sections 8.04.240 through 8.04.270 is not exclusive, but is 
in addition to procedures provided by other sections of this Chapter for the removal of 
nuisances, and the Chief of Police or the City Administrator may proceed summarily to abate 
a health or other nuisance which unmistakably exists, and which imminently endangers 
human life or property.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.290 ABATEMENT AS ADDITIONAL REMEDY  

The abatement of a nuisance is not a penalty for violating this Chapter, but is an additional 
remedy.  The imposition of a penalty does not relieve a person of the duty to abate the 
nuisance; however, abatement of a nuisance within the time set by the notice to abate, or if a 
written protest has been filed, abatement within 10 days of Council determination that a 
nuisance exists, will relieve the person responsible from the imposition of any fine for such 
nuisance.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992; Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.300 TO 8.04.360 RESERVED FOR EXPANSION   

8.04.370 OCCUPANCY OF RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY AFTER NOTICE OF VIOLATION   

1. If a notice of violation of SMC Section 8.04.120 has been issued, and if the affected 
dwelling unit(s) is or becomes vacant, it shall be unlawful to reoccupy or permit re-
occupancy of the unit(s) for residential purposes until the necessary permits are obtained, 
corrections made, and permit inspection approvals given.  

2. Notwithstanding SMC Subsection 8.04.370.1, the Enforcement Officer may permit re-
occupancy of the dwelling unit if in the Building Official’s opinion, all nuisance 
conditions have been addressed and rectified.  (Ord. 899, October 1, 2007)  

8.04.380 INTERFERENCE WITH REPAIR, DEMOLITION, OR ABATEMENT 
PROHIBITED.  

It is unlawful for any person to obstruct, impede, or interfere with any person lawfully 
engaged in:  

1. The work of repairing, vacating, warehousing, or demolishing any structure pursuant to the 
provisions of this Chapter;  

2. The abatement of a nuisance pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter.  

3. The performance of any necessary act preliminary to or incidental to such work as 



8.04 Nuisances 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 21 of 21 

authorized by this Chapter or directed pursuant to it.  

8.04.390 VIOLATION: PENALTY  

1. Any person, firm, or corporation who violates any provision of this Chapter is punishable 
upon conviction by a fine as provided in subsection 2 of this section.  This penalty may 
be assessed against the owner and the person in charge of the property.  Each day that the 
violation persists after notification shall be deemed as a separate offense.   

2. A violation of a provision of this Chapter is punishable by a fine approved by Council 
Resolution. A violation of this Chapter shall be punishable as an infraction by a fine not 
less than $500.00 nor more than $1,000.00 for each infraction.  (Ord. 899, October 1, 
2007) 

 



8.08 Public Alarm Systems 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 6 

  
CHAPTER 8.08 

 
PUBLIC ALARM SYSTEMS 

  
SECTIONS 
  

8.08.4010 Title of Provisions  
8.08.4020 Purpose of Provisions  
8.08.4030 Definitions   
8.08.4040 General System Requirements  
8.08.4050 Digital Communicator Restrictions  
8.08.4060 Training Requirements  
8.08.4070 Maintenance and Repair Responsibility  
8.08.4080 Testing of Systems  
8.08.4090 Fire Drills: Prior Notification Required  
8.08.5100 Responsibility for Alarm Deactivation  
8.08.5110 Sound Limitations  
8.08.5120 Permit Required  
8.08.5130 Permit: Application, Issuance  
8.08.5140 Fee Schedule  
8.08.5150 Permit: Grounds for Revocation  
8.08.5160 Permit: Appeals  
8.08.5170 False Alarms  
8.08.5180 RESERVED  
8.08.5190 Violation: Penalty  

  
  
8.08.4010 TITLE OF PROVISIONS  
  

This chapter shall be known as the "Public Alarm CodeOrdinance."  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4020 PURPOSE OF PROVISIONS  
  

1. The purpose of this chapter is to protect the Santiam Canyon Communications Center 
Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP)  and Emergency Services from misuses of 
automatic emergency alarm reporting systems.  

  
2. The ordinanceCode governs fire, medical, burglar, and hazard monitoring alarm 

systems, requires permits, establishes fees, provides for revocation of permits, and 
provides for punishment of violations.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4030 DEFINITIONS  
  

As used in this chapter, the following mean:  
  



8.08 Public Alarm Systems 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 2 of 6 

ALARM SYSTEM: A device or system of interconnected devices, including hardware 
and related accessories, designed to give warning of a fire, burglary, robbery, medical 
emergency, or other hazardous conditions occurring on the protected premises, except 
residential smoke detectors which are not connected to a receiving panel at an alarm 
reception point and does not emit sound outside the residence.  

 
 

AUTOMATIC DIALER: A device programmed to select a telephone number and 
deliver a warning message or signal over standard telephone lines.  

  
DIGITAL COMMUNICATOR: An automatic dialer specially designed and 
programmed to deliver an alarm signal to compatible receiving equipment located at an 
alarm reception point by telephone line. 
 
CITY:  City of Stayton, Oregon  

  
PUBLIC SAFETY ANSWERING POINT (PSAP):  eThe emergency  communication 
center also known as the 911 Center: The Santiam Canyon Communications Center, that 
is used to receive transmissions and general information from the public to be dispatched 
to the respective emergency services agenciesentities utilizing the center.  

  
FALSE ALARM: Any activation of any alarm system which results in the dispatch of 
emergency personnel to the protected premises where they are unable to discover any 
evidence of an emergency condition, but it does not include an alarm signal caused by 
violent conditions or nature of other extraordinary circumstances not reasonably subject 
to control by the alarm user.  

  
HARD-WIRE SYSTEM: An alarm system that detects and transmits alarms using 
direct leased lines to a receiving panel at an alarm reception point.  

  
LOCAL ALARMS: Systems or devices that sound audibly on the premises of the user, 
but are not connected to a receiving panel at an alarm reception point.  

  
PROTECTED PREMISES: All of that contiguous area including buildings protected 
by a single alarm system and under common ownership and use.  

  
PERSONS: Any alarm user, be it a natural person, firm, partnership, association, 
corporation, company, utility, or organization, profit or nonprofit, public or private.  
(Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4040 GENERAL SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS  
  

1. No alarm system shall be installed, used, or maintained in violation of any of the 
requirements of adopted provisions of the Uniform Fire Code or of any applicable 
statute, law, or administrative regulation of the sState or of the cCity.  

  



8.08 Public Alarm Systems 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 3 of 6 

2. Any alarm user required by federal, state, county, or municipal statute, regulation, 
rule, code, or ordinance to install, maintain, and operate an alarm system shall be 
subject to this chapter. (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4050 DIGITAL COMMUNICATOR RESTRICTIONS  
  

Any alarm system that incorporates a digital communicator shall be programmed to select 
an emergency communication center phone line specifically designed for this purpose.  
No automatic dialer shall be programmed to select the emergency communication center 
trunk phone lines.   (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4060 TRAINING REQUIREMENTS  
  

The holder of an alarm system permit shall be responsible for training and retraining of 
employees, family members, and other persons who make regular use of the protected 
premises and who may, in the normal course of their activities, be in a position to 
accidentally trigger an alarm device.  Such training shall include procedures to avoid 
accidental alarms and steps to follow in the event the system is accidentally triggered. 
(Ord. 711, November, 1992) 

 
  
8.08.4070 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR RESPONSIBILITY  
  

The holder of an alarm system permit shall, at all times, be responsible for the proper 
maintenance and repair of the system and for the repair or replacement of any 
component, method of installation, design feature, or like condition which may give rise 
to a false alarm.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4080 TESTING OF SYSTEMS  
  

All alarm system testing shall be conducted in accordance with the following: All service 
and tests of any alarm system that may result in transmission of alarm signals to the 
emergency communication center shall be conducted only after notification to the 
emergency communication center of the intention to conduct such service or tests.  
Failure to so notify will result in a false alarm assessment.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.4090 FIRE DRILLS: PRIOR NOTIFICATION REQUIRED  
  

Fire drills that incorporate activation of the alarm system with resultant transmission of 
alarm signals to the emergency communication center shall not be conducted without 
prior notification to the emergency communication center.   (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.5100 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALARM DEACTIVATION  
  

All permit holders shall furnish and update names and phone numbers of at least two 
responsible persons having access to the premises who may be notified to assist 



8.08 Public Alarm Systems 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 4 of 6 

personnel in the event the alarm is activated.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
8.08.5110 SOUND LIMITATIONS  
  

Local alarms other than fire alarms shall not make a sound similar to that of sirens on 
emergency vehicles or of civil defense warning systems.  Owners of local alarms shall be 
responsible to maintain and turn the alarm system off in case of malfunction, and are 
subject to Section 8.08.570 of this chapter.  No local alarm sounding device shall sound 
for more than five minutes and shall incorporate an automatic cutoff.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992)  

  
8.08.5120 PERMIT: REQUIRED  
  

No person shall install, use, or maintain any alarm system without first obtaining a permit 
for such system from the cCity.  Systems approved and installed prior to the adoption of 
this chapter shall be governed by such rules and regulations contained in this chapter.   
(Ord. 711, November, 1992)  

  
8.08.5130 PERMIT: APPLICATION, ISSUANCE  
  

1. Each application for an alarm system permit shall be made on a form prescribed 
by the city.  

  
2. Each permit application shall be accompanied by the fee prescribed in Section 

8.08.540set by Stayton City Council Resolution. of this chapter.  
  

3. Upon receipt of the permit application and fee, the city shall undertake such 
investigation as is deemed necessary.  If it appears that the proposed system will 
comply with the provisions of this chapter and any other applicable rules and 
regulations, the city shall issue to the applicant a permit bearing an identifying 
number and specifying the type of alarm system for which it is issued.   (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992)  

 
 
8.08.5140 FEE SCHEDULE  
  

The alarm system fees designated in Title 8 shall be set by Stayton City Council 
Resolutionas follows and are not refundable:  
  

1. The initial fee for a permit application is set by Stayton City Council 
Resolution$20.00.  

  
2. An additional  $25.00 charge shall be assessed in addition to the initial permit 

application fee provided in subsection 1. of this section if a user fails to obtain a 
permit prior to activation of the alarm.  

  



8.08 Public Alarm Systems 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 5 of 6 

3. 3. Fees shall be subject to revisions by ordinance of the city council over time as 
conditions merit.  

4.   
3. False Alarm Fees will be charged based on the number of false alarms received 

per year.  There is no charge for the first five false alarms. False Alarm fees are 
set by Stayton City Council Resolution and may go up incrementally based on the 
number of false alarms received per year at a given location.:  

  
a. First Five false alarms during the permit year, no charge;  
  
b. For the sixth through fifteenth false alarms, $25.00 per alarm;  
  
c. For each false alarm call after the fifteenth, $50.00 per alarm. (Ord. 732, '3, October 1994)  
  
8.08.5150 PERMIT: GROUNDS FOR REVOCATION  
  

1. The following shall be grounds for revoking any permit issued pursuant to this chapter:  
  

a. Any false or incomplete statement made on the permit application;  
  

b. Substantial alteration of alarm transmitting devices other than those approved at 
the time of the permit application;  

  
c. Testing or deliberate activation of the alarm system without following the 

provisions set forth in sections 8.08.480 and 8.08.490 of this chapter;  
  

d. Failure to properly maintain the system;  
  

e. Failure to pay a false alarm fee as prescribed in Section 8.08.540 of this chapter  
within thirty days of demand.  Noncompliance shall subject the protected 
property to a lien on the property, as well as to the penalties prescribed in 
Section 8.08.590 of this chapter.  

  
f. Any permit for an alarm system that has ten or more false alarms within a 

permit year  may be revoked and the system shall be disconnected.   
  

2. An alarm user shall immediately discontinue use of the alarm system upon being 
notified by certified mail of the revocation of the permit.  (Ord. 711, November, 
1992)  

  
8.08.5160 PERMIT: APPEALS  
  

Any party whose alarm system permit has been revoked under SMC Section 8.08.550 of 
this cChapter may appeal theat action to the Stayton cCity cCouncil by giving written 
notice to the cCity aAdministrator within thirty days after receipt of the notice of 
revocation.  The filing of a notice of appeal shall stay the action appealed until 



8.08 Public Alarm Systems 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 6 of 6 

disposition of the appeal by the cCouncil.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
 
 
8.08.5170 FALSE ALARMS  
  

As a condition of any alarm system permit issued under the provisions of this chapter and 
for maintenance of any similar system installed prior to adoption of this chapter, the 
permittee shall pay the city fees for false alarms generated by the permittee's alarm 
system according to the schedule in Section 8.08.540 of this chapter.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992)  

  
8.08.5180 RESERVED  
  
8.08.5190 VIOLATION: PENALTY  
  

1. A violation of a provision of this chapter is punishable by a fine not to exceed 
$500.00adopted by Stayton City Council Resolution.   

 
2. In addition to other remedies and fees provided for in this chapter, any person 

authorized to enforce the provisions of this chapter may issue an  enforcement 
complaint, as defined in section 6.04.020, to any person found in violation of the 
provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
 

 
 







 
 

8.12 Use of Public Parks, Public Property, and Waterways 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 3 of 7 

 
d. A permit shall not be issued for camping in a public park unless it is in  
conjunction with another City approved event, such as a festival in the park and does not 
interfere with the needs of the City such as normal city services. (Ord. 933, March 07, 
2011) 

 
3. The permit may be granted for up to ten days.  A permit shall not be issued to the same 

applicant more than once in any thirty-day period. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 
   

8.12.64030 PARK HOURS 
 

Public parks of the City shall be closed to access and use by the public between the hours 
of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. unless a permit has been issued by the Chief of Police or 
designee or a facility use permit has been issued by the City. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
8.12.65040 PROHIBITED BEHAVIOR IN PUBLIC PARKS, PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND 

FACILITIES 
 

1. No person shall make, assist in making, continue, or cause to be made any boisterous, 
disturbing, threatening, abusive, indecent, or obscene language or gestures; or 
unnecessary noise; or by any other act to breach the public peace; or annoy, disturb, 
injure, or endanger the comfort, repose, health, safety, welfare, or peace of others while 
in any park or public facility in accordance with the State Disorderly Conduct laws. (Ord. 
933, March 07, 2011) 

 
2. No person shall blow, spread, or place any nasal or other bodily discharge, or spit, 

urinate, or defecate on the floors, walls, partitions, furniture, fittings, or any portion of a 
public restroom located in any park, or in any place in a public restroom or public 
facility, excepting directly into the particular fixture provided for that purpose. 

 
3. No person shall damage or do anything that will or could cause damage to the public 

parks, public property, waterways, and facilities. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 
 

4. No person shall use the City's recreational equipment and facilities for activities other 
than their intended or approved purpose or in a way that could cause damage to them. 

 
5. Smoking of Ttobacco, marijuana, or any other substances including E-Cigarettes and use 

of smokeless tobacco use is prohibited at any cCity-owned parks property, park and 
facilities. (Ord. 936, July 05, 2011) 

 
6. Fires are not permitted except in designated fire rings or barbeque stands. 

 
7. No person shall enter into, put anything into, or cause anything to end up into the 

waterway known as the Stayton Ditch. 
 

8. No person shall swim, float, kayak, raft, boat, fish, wade, play in or participate in any 
similar recreation activity in the Stayton Ditch. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 



 
 

8.12 Use of Public Parks, Public Property, and Waterways 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 4 of 7 

9. The Stayton Ditch may be accessed for official use such as by the City of Stayton, 
Santiam Water Control District, Stayton Fire District, or other governmental or public 
safety organizations. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
8.12.050 PROHIBITING CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON PUBLIC 

PROPERTY  
 

No person shall drink or consume alcoholic beverages in or upon any public street or 
sidewalk, alley, public grounds, parks, City-owned facilities and properties, except when 
a permit for that purpose has been issued pursuant to this SMC or a business 
establishment has received OLCC approval for an outdoor eating area. (Ord. 921, April 
05, 2010; Ord. 760, '1, April 1996) 
  
a. Upon application to the City, the City Administrator, or designee may grant a 

revocable facility use permit to responsible persons or organizations for an event 
or activity at which alcoholic beverages may be served and consumed in City-
owned facilities or on City property. (Ord. 921, April 05, 2010)    

 
b. The City Council shall adopt rules governing facility use permits by Resolution.  

 (Ord. 921, April 05, 2010; Ord. 899, October 01, 2007; Ord. 871, November 22, 
2004) 

 
c. The Stayton Police may issue an ordinance violation citation for violating the 

Facility Use Rules which also may include revoking the “Facility Use” permit 
 
 
   
8.12.660060 EXCLUSION OF PERSONS FROM PARKS AND PUBLIC FACILITIES 
 

1. If there is probable cause to believe that a person has violated the Stayton Municipal 
Code, Chapters Titles 6 or, 8, .04, 8.12, 9.04, 9.08, 9.20, 9.24, 9.28, 9.36, , or Chapters 
10.04, or 10.12, or any related state law, while in a public park or publicpark facility, that 
person may be excluded from the any or all parks or public facility where the incident 
occurredies. Public property may include City owned parks and facilities, City business 
offices, community center, and library for a period of not more than thirty (30) days in 
accordance with the following procedure: (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011; Ord. 874, section 
23, 2004) 

 
a. Written notice shall be given to the person to be excluded from a park or public 

facility.  The exclusion period shall take immediate effect. 
 
b. The notice shall prominently specify the beginning and ending dates of the 

exclusion period. 
 
c. The notice shall specify the location(s) they are excluded from which is based on 

the original offense location.  The exclusion location shall only reflect the 
location of the original offense. For example: If the person commits a crime in 
the park they should only be excluded from the park(s) and not the Stayton Pool 
or the Community Center. 

 



 
 

8.12 Use of Public Parks, Public Property, and Waterways 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 5 of 7 

d. The notice shall prominently display a trespass warning describing the potential 
consequences of unlawful behavior after receipt of an exclusion notice and for 
entering a park, public property or facility during the exclusion period. (Ord. 933, 
March 07, 2011) 

 
e. At any time within the exclusion period, a person having received a notice may 

apply in writing to the Chief of Police or designee for a temporary waiver from 
the exclusion for good reason shown.  Good reason may include but not limited 
to such things as employment purposes, first amendment activities, a funeral or 
wedding. The Chief of Police will have 48 hours to make a decision on the 
waiver.(Ord. 933, March 07, 2011; Ord 720, '1, August 1993) 

 
f. The excluded individual may appeal the exclusion to the Stayton Municipal 

Court which shall hear the appeal at the next available Municipal Court hearing 
date. The Municipal Court may overturn the exclusion, agree with the exclusion 
or extend the exclusion.  The Municipal Court decision is final. The exclusion is 
valid during the time of the appeal. 
 

g. 8.12.660This Section shall does not apply to City -owned properties with long 
term lease by a business organization, such as the movie theater andor the Moose 
Lodge.  Those properties are considered to be privately controlled. 
 

h. If a person is excluded from City business offices, reasonable accommodations 
will be made for legitimate City business to be conducted. 

d.  

 
 
8.12.6070 EMERGENCY CLOSURE OF PUBLIC PROPERTIES, PARKS, AND WATERWAYS 
 

1. Stayton’s The Police Chief or designee may close a public property, park, waterway or 
part thereof, at any time by erecting barricades, signs, locking mechanisms or other 
appropriate measures prohibiting and barring access to any such public property, park, 
waterway or part thereof, at appropriate locations. Notice that any public property, park, 
waterway or part thereof, is closed shall be posted at appropriate locations during the 
period of such closure. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
2. Stayton’s The Police Chief or designee may close any public property, park, waterway, 

or any part thereof, in accordance with this section, in the interest of public safety, health, 
and welfare in the event conditions exist in or near that premises which involve any of 
the following circumstances: (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
a. Life or property appearproperties appear to be endangered and other means 

cannot reasonably be utilized to eliminate the danger; 
 

b. An overcrowding of persons or vehicles has occurred, impairing access of 
emergency assistance or emergency vehicles; 

 
c. The subject premises or other property located near the premises reasonably 

appears to be endangered; (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 
 



 
 

8.12 Use of Public Parks, Public Property, and Waterways 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 6 of 7 

d. Persons making, assisting in making, continuing, or causing to be made any 
boisterous, disturbing, threatening, abusive, indecent, or obscene language or 
gestures, or unnecessary noise, or by any other act to breach the public peace; or 
annoying, disturbing, injuring, or endangering the comfort, repose, health, safety, 
welfare, or peace of others in any park, public facility, or waterway and is of 
such consequence that cessation of the disturbance cannot otherwise be 
accomplished; (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
e. A hazardous condition exists; 

 
f. That violation(s) of criminal offenses or ordinances code is occurring and is 

caused by sufficient numbers of persons, or is of such consequence that cessation 
of the disturbance cannot otherwise be accomplished; or, (Ord. 933, March 07, 
2011) 

 
g. Other conditions exist such that the safety or protection of persons or property 

cannot reasonably be assured. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 
 

3. During the closure of a park, public premises or waterway, or portion thereof, in 
accordance with this sectionchapter, it shall be unlawful for any person to enter upon the 
premises, or any part thereof, that has been closed, or to remain in the premises, or part 
thereof, after having been notified of the closure and having been requested to leave by a 
an authorized authority. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
4. Such emergency closure shall not exceed 18 hours without the written approval of the 

City Administrator.  (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011; Ord 720, '1, August 1993) 
 
8.12.6080 VIOLATION: PENALTY 
 

1. A violation of a provision of this chapter is punishable by a fine not to exceed $500.00 
per day.  (approved by Stayton City Council Resolution.Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 
2. In addition to the remedies and fees provided for in this Chapter, any person authorized 

to enforce the provisions of this Cchapter may issue an enforcement complaint, as 
defined in section 6.04.020, to any person found in violation of the provisions of this 
Cchapter.  (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011; Ord. 711, November, 1992) 

 
3. If there is probable cause to believe a person has violated provisions of 8.12this Chapter, 

constituting a crime under Oregon Revised Statues that person may be prosecuted 
accordingly, and if convicted, fined accordingly. (Ord. 933, March 07, 2011) 

 



 
 

8.12 Use of Public Parks, Public Property, and Waterways 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 7 of 7 

 
 
  



8.16 Control of Insect Pests 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 3 

  
 CHAPTER 8.16  
  
 CONTROL OF INSECT PESTS  
SECTIONS 
  
8.16.710 Prohibited Generally  
8.16.720 Definitions  
8.16.730 Control Methods  
8.16.740 Pest Control Officer: Appointment, Authority  
8.16.750 Pest Control Officer: Right of Access  
8.16.760 Abatement Procedures  
8.16.770 Violation Generally  
8.16.780 Abatement as Additional Remedy and Other Remedies  
8.16.790 Exemptions  
8.16.800 Penalty  
  
  
8.16.710 PROHIBITED GENERALLY  
  
No owner or person in charge of property shall fail to control insect pests on host plants or host 
trees on his property.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
8.16.720 DEFINITIONS  
  
HOST PLANTS AND HOST TREES: As used in this chapter, host plants and host trees 
include all conifer trees and ornamental shrubs including rhododendrons, azaleas, camellias, and 
any other plant or shrub designated by the Oregon Department of Agriculture or Oregon State 
University Extension Service upon or around which root weevils live, feed, or reproduce.  
  
INSECT PESTS: As used in this chapter, insect pests include the strawberry root weevil, 
Otiorhynchus ovatus L., and all other weevils in the species Otiorhynchus.  (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992)  
  
8.16.730 CONTROL METHODS  
  
Insect pests on all host plants and host trees, including but not limited to host plants and host 
trees on commercial or semi-commercial tree farms, orchards, private residential property, public 
property, and abandoned property within the control area shall be controlled by the following 
control methods:  
  
1. Control by spraying: Host plants and host trees shall, subject to subsection 3. of this section, 
be sprayed by the owner or person in possession thereof by using the agricultural chemicals or 
pesticide formulations at the rate, at the times, and in the manner recommended by Oregon State 
University (whether by its own publications, approval of other publications, or otherwise) or the 
Oregon Department of Agriculture.  



8.16 Control of Insect Pests 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 
2. Control or removal of host plants or trees: If control spraying is not possible or practicable, the 
pest control officer may, by written order delivered or mailed to the owner or the person in 
possession of property, direct that the host plants or host trees be removed and/or destroyed.  The 
only approved methods for removal and destruction of host plants or host trees is as follows:  
  
a. Digging out of trees or plants and their complete root structures;  
  
b. Cutting down the trees or plants and thereafter treating the remaining stump and root systems 
thereof with an effective chemical to prevent their regrowth or resprouting.  
  
3. Other methods of control: As necessary or at the request of a property owner or possessor, the 
pest control officer may authorize other methods of control as deemed effective by qualified 
experts such as the Oregon Department of Agriculture or Oregon State University.   (Ord. 711, 
November, 1992)  
  
8.16.740 PEST CONTROL OFFICER: APPOINTMENT, AUTHORITY  
  
1. The chief of police shall appoint a pest control officer who shall enforce the provisions of this 
chapter.  
  
2. The pest control officer shall work under the direction of and be responsible to the chief of 
police.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
8.16.750 PEST CONTROL OFFICER: RIGHT OF ACCESS  
  
In order to determine whether the provisions of this chapter have been complied with by the 
persons obligated to do so, the pest control officer or designate may inspect any field, orchard, 
private residential property, public property, or abandoned property within the control area at 
reasonable times in accordance with Chapter 1.24 of this code and shall not be subject, civilly or 
criminally, to liability for trespass.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
8.16.760 ABATEMENT PROCEDURES  
  
Violation of this chapter shall be considered a public nuisance which may be abated as provided 
in this subsection.    
  
1. The city pest control officer or designate may, and upon the written complaint of any person 
shall, make an investigation to determine whether a violation of this chapter exists.  
  
2. The nuisance may be abated in accordance with the sections 8.04.240 to 8.04.300 of this code.  
(Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
  
  



8.16 Control of Insect Pests 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 3 of 3 

8.16.770 VIOLATION GENERALLY  
  
It is a violation of this chapter for any owner or possessor of public or private property to fail to 
control insect pests on host plants or host trees on his property as required by this chapter.  (Ord. 
711, November, 1992)  
  
8.16.780 ABATEMENT AS ADDITIONAL REMEDY AND OTHER REMEDIES  
  
1. The abatement of a nuisance is not a penalty for violating this chapter, but is an additional 
remedy.  The imposition of a penalty does not relieve a person of the duty to abate the nuisance; 
however, abatement of a nuisance within the time set by the notice to abate, or if a written protest 
has been filed, then abatement within ten (10) days of council determination that a nuisance 
exists, will relieve the person responsible from the imposition of any fine for such nuisance.  
  
2. Other remedies: In addition to any remedies provided in this chapter, the city council may 
institute any available remedial proceedings (e.g., injunction, mandamus, abatement, or any other 
appropriate proceedings) to prevent, temporarily or permanently enjoin, abate, or remove any 
activity or use of real or personal property which it has reasonable cause to believe does or will 
violate this chapter.  (Ord. 711, November 1992; Ord. 874, section 24, 2004)  
  
8.16.790 EXEMPTIONS  
  
1. There shall be an exemption from the provisions of this chapter for the conducting of accepted 
scientific experiments by Oregon State University or its designate on test plots.  
  
2. Should any such experiments cause complaints, the pest control officer shall contact Oregon 
State University, which shall take action to alleviate the complaint.  (Ord. 711, November, 1992)  
  
8.16.800 PENALTY  
  
1. A violation of sections 8.16.710 through 8.16.760 of this chapter shall be punishable as an 
infraction by a fine not to exceed $500.00.  
  
2. In addition to other remedies and fees provided for in this chapter, any person authorized to 
enforce the provisions of this chapter may issue an enforcement complaint as defined in section 
6.04.020, to any person found in violation of the provision of this chapter.  (Ord. 711, November, 
1992)  
  
  
 
 



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 8 

  
CHAPTER 8.20  

  
CHRONIC NUISANCE PROPERTY ORDINANCE  

  
SECTIONS  

  
8.20.010  Title of Provisions  
8.20.020  Incorporation of State Statute and Stayton Municipal Code  
8.20.030  Definitions  

  8.20.040  Chronic Nuisance Property  
8.20.050  Pre-filing Notification Procedure  
8.20.060  Compliance Agreement with Responsible Party(ies)  
8.20.070  Commencement of Actions; Summons and Complaint  
8.20.080  Remedies; Fines; Civil Penalty; Enforcement Order  
8.20.090  Defenses; Mitigation  
8.20.100  Emergency Remedy  
8.20.110  Costs; Lien  
8.20.120  Attorney Fees  
8.20.130  Severability  
8.20.140  Nonexclusive Remedy  

  
  

8.20.010 TITLE OF PROVISIONS  
  

This chapter shall be known as the AChronic Nuisance Property OrdinanceCode.@ (Ord. 
809, February, 2000)   

  
8.20.020 INCORPORATION OF STATE STATUTE AND STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE    
  
  Repealed.  (Ord. 874, section 25, 2004)  
  
8.20.030   DEFINITIONS  

  
As used in this ordinance, the following definitions apply:  
  

1. CHIEF OF POLICE: means the Chief of the Stayton Police Department 
or designee.  

 
 

2. CITY ADMINISTRATOR: means the City Administrator of the City of 
Stayton or designee.  

 
3. CHRONIC NUISANCE PROPERTY: means real property premises 

(including industrial, commercial or residential buildings), herein also 
referred to as the Aproperty,@ Apremises@ or Asubject property,@ upon, 



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 2 of 8 

near (as hereinafter described in this section) or in which three or more 
distinct occurrences of any of the below listed prohibited acts or behaviors 
(as defined in Oregon law or the SMC) occur, or the patrons, employees, 
residents, owners or occupants thereof engage in three or more of said 
prohibited acts or behaviors on the property, or, in relation to the property 
within 400 feet of the property,  during any 90 consecutive day period. 
The victim of a crime should not be held responsible for incidents that 
occur at the location when considering enforcement of this Section of the 
SMC:   

 
A. All Crimes against Persons 
 
B. The following Crimes and Violations against Society will include: 

 
a. Dangerous Animal 
b. Disorderly Conduct 
c. Drug crimes and violations 
d. Furnishing Alcohol to a Minor 
e. Minor in Possession of Alcohol 
f. Custodial Interference 
g. Prostitution 
h. Public and Private Indecency 
i. Unnecessary Noise 
j. Weapons and Firearms including Discharge of Weapons in 

the City 
 

C. Property Crimes and Violations in which the “Chronic Nuisance 
Property” in question is directly involved in the crime such being 
the location where stolen property is stored or stolen property 
transactions are conducted, or where arson/reckless burning has 
occurred, graffiti etc. 

 
 
  
A. Criminal Homicide (or Attempt)  ORS 163.005  
  
B. Rape in the First Degree   ORS 163.375  
  
C. Menacing     ORS 163.190  
 
 
D. Intimidation     ORS 166.155 - 166.165  
  
E. Harassment     ORS 166.065  
  
rly Conduct    ORS 166.025  



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 3 of 8 

F. Disorde   
 G. Discharge of Weapons   ORS 166.630 et seq.   
      (See ORS 166.172 re.   
      city regulation.)  
  
H. Unnecessary Noise (SMC, Title 8 - HEALTH & SAFETY, Section 8.04.140 Noise & 
Vibrations);  
  
I. Drinking in Public Places (SMC, Title 8 - HEALTH & SAFETY, Section 8.04.055 
Prohibited Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages on Public Property);  
  
J. Minor in Possession of Alcohol  ORS 471.430  
  
K. Assault     ORS 163.160 - 163.185  
  
L. Sexual Abuse     ORS 163.415 - 163.427  
  
M. Public Indecency    ORS 163.465  
  
N. Public Indecency (SMC, Title 9 - PUBLIC PEACE & WELFARE, Section 9.20.410 
Public Urination or Defecation);  
  
O. Criminal Mischief    ORS 164.345 - 164.365  
  
P. Criminal Mistreatment   ORS 163.200 - 163.206  
  
Q. Criminal Trespass    ORS 164.243 - 164.255  
  
R. Unlawful Use of a Weapon   ORS 166.220  
 
 

4. CODE:  City of Stayton Municipal Code (aka SMC) 
 

5. OWNER: means the person(s) (including individual(s), corporation, 
partnership or other entity) having legal or equitable title to the property. 
Property means any real property and any improvement thereon incidental 
or appurtenant, including but not limited to any room, apartment, house, 
building, structure or any separate part or portion thereof, whether 
permanent or not.  

 
6. RESPONSIBLE PARTY includes:  

 
A. The owner of the property, or the owner/s manager or agent or other person or entity 

in control of the property on behalf of the owner; and/ or,   
 
B. The person or entity occupying the property, including a bailee, lessee, tenant or other 



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 4 of 8 

having possession.   
 

C.       Responsible party for a specific property shall be presumed from 
the following:  
a. The owner and the owner/s agent, as shown on the 

Assessors  tax rolls of Marion County.  
 
b. The resident or occupant of the property, as shown on the 

records (including utilities records) of the City of Stayton.  
 

7. COURT: means a court of competent jurisdiction, which may 
address the respective issue.  

 
 
  
  
8.20.040 CHRONIC NUISANCE PROPERTY  
  

1. The behavior, acts or omissions described in this ChapterOrdinance are 
hereby declared to be nuisances and if they commonly reoccur in relation 
to a specific property, such property may be declared chronic nuisance 
property,  thereby requiring the application of remedies set out in this 
OrdinanceChapter.  

 
2. Any property within the City of Stayton, which is found to be a chronic 

nuisance property, shall be in violation of this Ordinance and subject to its 
remedies.  

 
3. Any person who is a responsible party for property, which is deemed a 

chronic nuisance property, shall be in violation of this Ordinance Chapter 
and subject to its remedies.  

  
8.20.050 PRE-FILING NOTIFICATION PROCEDURE  

  
After two occurrences on or near (as defined in this OrdinanceChapter) the property, of 
any of the prohibited acts or behaviors listed in this Ordinance, within a consecutive 90-
day period, the Chief of Police or designee shall provide notification, via certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to all known responsible parties for the property, stating the 
times and places of the alleged occurrences and the potential liability for violation of this 
OrdinanceChapter. The City Administrator and City Attorney shall be provided copies of 
the notice.  

  
8.20.060 COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT WITH RESPONSIBLE PARTY(IES)  
  

1.  After providing notification to all known responsible parties, the Chief of 
Police or designee has the authority to solicit and obtain, on behalf on the 



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 5 of 8 

City, a voluntary agreement with the party(ies) to comply with the 
provisions of this OrdinanceChapter (AcomplianceA compliance 
agreement@).  The compliance agreement shall be in writing and signed 
by all known responsible parties and the Chief of Police or designee on 
behalf of the City; a copy thereof shall be provided to the City 
Administrator.  

  
2. In proposing the compliance agreement, the Chief of Police or designee 

shall consider the factors outlined in Section 8.20.090(2) below.  
  

3. The compliance agreement is strictly remedial in nature and shall not be 
interpreted to limit in any manner the authority of the City to commence 
an action against any responsible party or another for a violation of any 
provision of the Stayton Municipal Code or Oregon law.  

  
4. If the compliance agreement is not followed as agreed, the City may 

proceed with civil action as provided in this Ordinance Chapter or the 
provisions of the ORS or the Stayton Municipal Code.  

  
8.20.070 COMMENCEMENT OF ACTIONS; SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT  

  
1. In the event there occurs on or near (as defined in this OrdinanceChapter) 

the property three or more continued prohibited acts or behavior as listed 
in Section 8.20.030 of this OrdinanceChapter, contrary to the terms of the 
compliance agreement and/or in violation of this Ordinance, the Stayton 
City Council shall be advised and, upon deliberation, may direct that the 
City proceed to initiate court action pursuant to the provisions of this 
OrdinanceChapter or take such other action as the Council deems 
appropriate.  

  
2. Except as otherwise noted, the procedures to be used in processing a 

violation under this OrdinanceChapter are contained in SMC Title 1: 
GENERAL PROVISIONS, Ch. 1.32 General Penalty and Title 2: 
ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL, Ch. 2.20 Municipal Court.  

 
 

3. Subject to the provisions of SMC Title 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS, 
Sections 1.32.970, Violation: Penalty, 1.32.980, Each Act a Separate 
Violation, and 1.32.990, Default of Payment, following the filing of an 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction, upon verification of proper 
service of process of the Summons and Complaint, and a prima facie 
presentation to the Court, a default judgment and order may be entered 
against a respondent who fails to duly appear before that court.  

 
8.20.080          REMEDIES; FINES; CIVIL PENALTY; ENFORCEMENT ORDER  
  



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 6 of 8 

1. In the event the respondent(s) is found by a preponderance of the evidence 
to have violated this OrdinanceChapter, the court may, by judgment and 
order:  

  
A. Require that the chronic nuisance property be closed against all use 

and occupancy for a period of not less than 30 days, but not more 
than 180 days; and/or,  

  
B. Assess a fine of not more than $250.00 for each offense.   
  
C. Subsequent acts and behavior in violation of the provisions of this 

OrdinanceChapter, which occur within two years following the 
entry of any earlier judgment and order, may be actionable, at the 
direction of the City Council, and, if violation(s) of this Ordinance 
Chapter is established, the chronic nuisance property may be 
closed in accordance with this Section, and the court may impose a 
civil penalty of a fine of not more than one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00).  

  
D. In addition to above, the court may employ any other remedy 

provided by law, deemed by the court to be appropriate to abate 
the nuisance.  

  
E. In addition to the above, the court may assess costs and charges as 

described in Section 8.20.110.  
  

2. In lieu of closure of the property, at the court=’s discretion, the respondent 
may be permitted to file a bond with the City that is acceptable to the court 
and subject to the court=’s satisfaction of the respondent=’s good faith 
commitment to abatement of the nuisance.  Such bond shall be in the 
amount of at least $500 and shall be conditioned upon the non-recurrence, 
for a period of one year after entry of the judgment, of any of the acts or 
behaviors listed in Section 8.20.030 of this OrdinanceChapter.  Forfeiture 
of the bond is subject to court review and order.  

 
3. The court may authorize the City to physically secure the subject property 

against use or occupancy, in compliance with the judgment or order, in the 
event the owner(s) or the responsible party(ies) fail to do so within the 
time specified by the court.  

  
8.20.090 DEFENSES; MITIGATION  

  
1. It is a defense to an action brought pursuant to this OrdinanceChapter, that 

the responsible party, the respondent, at the time the alleged action or 
behavior occurred, could not, in the exercise of reasonable care or 
diligence, determine that the property had become chronic nuisance 



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 7 of 8 

property, or could not, in spite of the exercise of reasonable care and 
diligence, control the conduct leading to the determination that the 
property is a chronic nuisance property.  The assertion that the party, the 
respondent, was not present at the property at the time the alleged acts or 
behavior occurred upon which the property was deemed chronic nuisance 
property, shall not, alone, be a defense to the action.  

  
2. The court may consider any of the following factors, as appropriate, in its 

decision, and shall cite those found applicable:  
  

A. The effort taken by the responsible party to mitigate or correct the 
alleged action or behavior which occurred at or near (as defined in 
this OrdinanceChapter) and in relation to the property;  

 
B. Whether the alleged action or behavior was repeated or 

continuous;  
 
C. The magnitude or gravity of the alleged action or behavior; The 

cooperativeness of the responsible party with the City in causing 
the abatement of the alleged action or behavior;  

 
D. The cost to the City of investigating and abating action or behavior 

or attempting to correct the condition; or,  
 
E. Any other factor deemed by the court to be relevant.  

  
8.20.100 EMERGENCY REMEDY  

  
In addition to any remedy available to the City under this Ordinance Chapter or 
otherwise, in the event the City Administrator finds that a property or its use constitutes 
an immediate threat to the public safety and welfare, upon review and approval by the 
City Council, the City may apply to the court for such relief as is deemed appropriate.  

  
8.20.110 COSTS; LIEN  
  

1. The court may assess the property owner(s) and the responsible party(ies) 
the following costs incurred by the City in the proceeding:  

  
A. Costs incurred in the actual physical securing of the subject 

property against use or occupancy, including, but not limited to, 
the cost of personnel, materials, medical costs, consulting fees, 
notices and equipment charges;  

 
B. The City’s investigative costs; and,   
 
C. Administrative costs and attorney fees and costs (collectively 



8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property 
Revised December 15, 2014 

Page 8 of 8 

referred to as cost) incurred in pre-filing implementation of the 
abatement process, together with the cost of the initiation and 
conducting of the court action.   

  
2. The City Administrator may, within 14 days of the court’s entry of 

judgment and order against the respondent(s), submit a signed detailed 
statement of costs (including attorney fees) to the court for its review.  If 
no objection to the statement is made within the period prescribed by 
Oregon Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 67, the amount submitted shall 
become a part of the judgment and a lien against the subject premises.  A 
copy of the judgment and the statement of costs, together with a verified 
designation of the address and legal description of the property, shall be 
forwarded to the Stayton City Recorder, who shall enter the same in the 
Stayton City Lien Docket.  

 
3. Persons assessed the costs and/or civil penalty pursuant to this Ordinance 

Chapter shall be jointly and severally liable for the payment thereof to the 
City.  

  
8.20.120 ATTORNEY FEES  

  
In any action brought pursuant to this OrdinanceChapter, the court may, in its 
discretion, award reasonable attorney’s fees to the prevailing party.  

  
8.20.130 SEVERABILITY  
  

If any provision of this OrdinanceChapter, or its application to any person or 
circumstance, is held to be invalid for any reason, the remainder of the 
OrdinanceChapter, or the application of its provisions to other persons or 
circumstances, shall not in any way be affected. 

 
  
8.20.140 NONEXCLUSIVE REMEDY  
  

The remedies described in this OrdinanceChapter shall not be the exclusive 
remedies of the City in enforcement of the prohibition of the acts and behaviors 
described in Section 8.20.030.  (Ord. 809, February, 2000) 

 



















































 

Public Works Monthly Operating Report    Page 1 
December 15, 2014 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:      Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:    Jennifer Russell, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:     December 15, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Works Monthly Operating Report for November 
     
KEY ACTIVITIES  STATUS 
 
 WWTP Facility  Effluent flows: 42.84 million gallons were treated during November. The 

highest  flow was  2.29 million  gallons  on November  29  and  the  lowest 
flow was 1.00 million gallons on November 9 and 11. The average  flow 
was 1.43 million gallons. Total rainfall for November was 6.66 inches.  

 
 WTP    Highest production day was 2,857,000 on the November 7. 
 
 Water System  Replaced 4 meters. Douglas waterline  is complete. The 2  inch water  line 

on Douglas was abandoned. Replaced a valve box for a hydrant on West 
Washington. Repair to a water service at 1212 W Ida. Cleaned number 3 
filter bed at Water Plant. 

 
 Streets     Swept  335  curb miles  and  removed  approximately  450  cubic  yards  of 

material. 60 yards of yard debris were  taken  in on November 8  for  the 
Fall Leaf Pickup. The suggested donation of food brought  in 135 pounds 
of food for the Stayton Food Bank. 

 
  Parks    Volunteers: Community Service – 0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours, Lifeskills 

High School Students – 39 hours. Total = 39 hours. 
 
 Building Permits     

            Permit Type  Issued  SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling  0  0 
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other  0  0 

Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other  1  0 

Electrical  0  0 

Mechanical   0  0 

Plumbing  1  0 

TOTAL 2  0 
One (1) Residential SDC = $11,490.00 + $670.00 for Mill Creek SDC 




